
BRATTLEBORO TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014 

8:30AM – SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM 
MINUTES 

 
 
Members present:  Interim Town Manager Patrick Moreland, Police Chief Gene Wrinn, School 
Representative Betsy Gentile, and Citizen Representative Robert Immler. 
 
Selectboard representative present:  David Gartenstein. 
 
Other staff members present:  Highway/Utilities Superintendent Hannah O’Connell.   
 
Others present:  Steven Brown, Prudence MacKinney, Terry A. Carter, Matt Mann, Mary Marchev, and 
others who did not sign the attendance sheet. 
 
Interim Town Manager Moreland called the meeting to order at 8:35am.   
 
MOTION BY BETSY GENTILE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM FEBRUARY 25, 2014.  MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Public Participation – Judy Zemel said that she recently received a $50 parking ticket for parking in a 
loading zone on Flat Street after business hours.  She said that she and other community members 
thought that loading zones were enforced only during normal business hours.  She questioned whether 
the policy had changed and complained that no hours were specified on the loading zone sign.  She left a 
letter for the Interim Town Manager. 
 
Terry Carter said that since the Town’s budget was approved at Representative Town Meeting she 
wanted to confirm that $5,000 was included for the purchase of a traffic calming device for Putney Road 
and that the device would be purchased.  She also said that she attended a Safe Streets Program 
meeting yesterday where a representative from Local Motion spoke, and she hoped that the Traffic Safety 
Committee would take up traffic calming measures discussed at the Safe Streets meeting. 
 
Moreland said that he received an e-mail from Holland Mills who complained that the traffic calming 
device on Green Street was not functioning properly.  Mills said that he would not be able to attend the 
meeting so Moreland read the e-mail to the Committee.  O’Connell said that the device had been 
malfunctioning so was taken out of service to prevent the display of misleading messages.  She said that 
in the meantime changes were being made to the manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices so Public 
Works Department was investigating whether the device would be in compliance with the current 
standards.  She said the department was working toward a resolution.  There was a brief discussion by 
the Committee.  Moreland said that he would communicate that information to Mills. 
 
Parking on Speno Court  – Discussion with Residents.  Moreland said that letters had been sent to 
property owners on Speno Court advising them that the parking matter would be taken up at this meeting.  
O’Connell reviewed the Safety Action Request previously submitted on this matter.   
 
Steve Brown, who resides at 25 Speno Court, spoke against changing parking on Speno Court.  He said 
that eliminating parking would be burdensome to the residents further down the street.  Mary Marchev, 
who resides at the end of Speno Court, spoke for herself and the other five families on Speno Court, and 
said they were opposed to changing the parking. She said that the entrance onto the street could be a 
challenge but any change would move the problem further down the street.  She also said that cars 
parked on Western Avenue can block the view when leaving Speno Court.  There was discussion by the 
Committee about the required parking distances to intersections, crosswalks, and driveways, 
enforcement of parking on Western Avenue, and possible review of the signage on Speno Court.   
 
MOTION BY BETSY GENTILE, AND SECONDED BY GENE WRINN, TO MAKE NO CHANGES TO 
PARKING ON SPENO COURT.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Traffic Safety Committee 03-25-14  1  
 



Traffic Calming Plan Safety Action Request Forms 
 
(a)  Sidewalk clearing by Property Owners – Safe Walking Options Year Round, Prudence MacKinney.   
Prudence MacKinney, from the Vermont Department of Health, was present and spoke of her concerns 
about having safe walking options throughout the year from a public health point of view.  She said that 
the Health Department promotes healthy community designs and encourages the public to integrate 
physical activity into their daily routines, but during the winter the walking options were lessened.  She 
suggested that the Town have a function to engage neighborhoods in dialog promoting shoveling and 
caring for sidewalks by their homes and businesses.   O’Connell said that she researched sidewalk 
maintenance locally and regionally and found that a majority of towns and cities have various models of 
sidewalk clearing ordinances, but enforcement differed, including no enforcement, minimal enforcement, 
complaint driven enforcement, and fee system enforcement.  She spoke about the dangerous conditions 
of many sidewalks, maintaining sidewalks located on town-owned property, and inequitable enforcement. 
 
Terry Carter spoke in support of using incentives to promote shoveling in front of properties. 
 
Matt Mann spoke in appreciation of the work by Public Works Department throughout the difficult winter 
season. 
 
Gartenstein said that the Selectboard discussed sidewalk plowing at its last meeting and the Board asked 
the Interim Town Manager to discuss the matter with the School District about bearing some responsibility 
to maintain sidewalks near schools and possible funding through the Safe Streets to School Program. 
 
There was discussion about sidewalk conditions in the winter, heavily used sidewalks versus less used 
sidewalks, intermittent sidewalks, difficulty of enforcement of a uniform ordinance, equitable enforcement, 
neighborhood culture in maintaining sidewalks, and community involvement.  It was decided that 
MacKinney would identify specific areas of concern and report back to the Committee where community 
involvement dialog could be initiated including entities such as Boys & Girls Club, community service 
and/or students.  It was also suggested that Windham Regional Commission may be able to provide GIS 
mapping.   
 
Monthly Report on Pedestrian and Bicycle Incidents – Chief Wrinn reported that since the last Traffic 
Safety committee meeting, the Police Department investigated 40 accidents, none of which involved 
pedestrians or bicycles.  There was a brief discussion. 
 
Other Business 
 
Moreland said that a public meeting would soon be scheduled on the Union Hill project. 
 
There was no further business. 

MOTION BY DAVID GARTENSTEIN, AND SECONDED BY BETSY GENTILE, AT 9:15 AM TO 
ADJOURN.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Traffic Safety Committee 03-25-14  2  
 


